
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND A REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE:    TUESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2023 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 

PHARR, TEXAS 78577  

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 

An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INVOCATION 

PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Forrest Runnels (November 2010 to May 2023)

CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP

1. Review of Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending June 30, 2023.

ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP

CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC COMMENT

1. REPORTS

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document

– HCRMA Staff

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA.

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters  listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing
Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no  separate discussion of  these  items; however,  if
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not
such  item(s) are posted as an Executive Session  Item, at any  time during  the meeting when authorized by
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.)



A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held July 25, 2023 and Special Board Meeting held on

August 1, 2023.

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from July 8, 2023 to August 7, 2023.

C. Approval of Financial Reports for May 2023.
D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending June 30, 2023.

3. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Resolution 2023 – 34 – Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment 15  to Professional Service 
Agreement with C&M Associates to increase maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 
13.

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

A. None.

5. TABLED ITEMS

A. None.

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)

A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 
with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.)

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the 
Texas Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.)

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).

D. Consultation  with  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  voluntary  acquisition  of  real  property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.).

E. Consultation  with  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  acquisition,  including  the  use  of  Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.).

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 



 

 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I,  the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify  that  the attached agenda of  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority  office  (203 W. Newcombe Ave,  Pharr,  Texas  78577),  a  place  convenient  and  readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  16th   day of Augusts 2023 at 5:00 pm 
and will  remain  so  posted  continuously  for  at  least  72  hours  preceding  the  scheduled  time  of  said meeting  in 
accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
                                           Maria E. Alaniz         
                Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. 
Alaniz at 956‐402‐4762 at least 96 hours before the meeting. 
 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 

a maximum of six (6) minutes.   

 

All  individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 

meetings being held by  telephonic or videoconference,  individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at  (956) 402‐4762 

before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  

  

 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 

the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 

HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 

issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 

on posted agenda  items deemed appropriate by  the Chairman as  these  items are considered, and  the  same  time 

limitations applies.” 

 

Note:   Participation by Telephone/Video Conference Call – One or more member of the HCRMA Board of Directors 

may participate  in  this meeting  through  a  telephone/video  conference  call,  as  authorized by  Sec. 370.262,  Texas 

Transportation Code.    

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     WORKSHOP ITEM                 1                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED         08/12/2023                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      08/22/2023  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: WORKSHOP ITEM 1 – QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORTS FOR THE 

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 2023.                                                                                        
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Presentation of the quarterly investment report.                                                                  
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Presentation only._________________________  _______________                    
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved      X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

  X AGENDA ITEM        1A 
DATE SUBMITTED  8/17/2023 
MEETING DATE   8/22/2023 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  Report on Program Manager Activity__________________________________

 No2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes

Report on HCRMA Developement Activities.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved        Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

 Disapproved    X   None 11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:  X    Approved  Disapproved   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved   X   None 











































HCRMA PROPOSED COUNTY LOOP SYSTEM



365TollSegment IV
2.65 miles

$96.4M

Section A West
 8.3 Miles 

$308M



Section C East-West Connector
15 miles  $330M

 









July 2023 at 30,418



2023 Pharr N.B. Truck Crossings 

70000 

60000 

50000 

40000 

30000 

20000 

10000 

0 

JANUARY 

ITS 

FEBRUARY 

January 

3399 ■ OW/OS PERM 

TOTAL PHARR 

□ %Captured

TRUCK XINGS 60392 

5.6 

-

MARCH APRIL MAY 

February March April 

3059 3982 4271 

56904 65349 58672 
,___ -

5.4 6.1 7.3 

■ OW/OS PERMITS TOTAL PHARR TRUCK XINGS 

JUNE 

May 

4910 
- -

66352 
- -

7.4 

% Captured 

Ju ne 

319 

59 087 

0.7 1 

JULY 

July 

4478 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

  X AGENDA ITEM        1B 
DATE SUBMITTED   08/15/2023 
MEETING DATE   08/22/2023 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway Project Construction Activities.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved        Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

 Disapproved    X   None 11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:  X    Approved  Disapproved   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved   X   None 



HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Forrest

Runnels, Vice-Chairman
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director Juan Carlos
Del Angel, Director

Gabriel Kamel, Director

Sergio Saenz, Director

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.
Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Ascencion Alonzo, Chief Financial Ofcr.

General Engineering Consultant
HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING FOR JULY 2023

www.hcrma.net Report on HCRMA Construction Activities
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM

1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 The Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued to Pulice Construction Inc. (PCI) on February 15, 2022, with time 
charges commencing on March 17, 2022. 

 

 The work under this contract shall be substantially completed within 1,264 CALENDAR days [September 22, 
2025] After Substantial Completion, Pulice will be allowed up to an additional 60 calendar days for Final 
Acceptance. Therefore, all improvements must be final accepted by [November 21, 2025]. 

 Workingdays will be charged Sunday through Saturday, including all holidays [with exception of: 
 

New Year’s Day (January 1st) 

Independence Day (July 4th) 

Labor Day (1st Monday in the month of September) 
Thanksgiving Day and day after (4th Thursday and Friday in the month of November); 
Christmas Eve and Day (December 24th and 25th)] 

 

regardless of weather conditions, material availability, or other conditions not under the 
control of the Contractor, except as expressly provided for in the Contract. If Contractor fails to 
complete the work on or before the contract time, Pulice Construction Inc. agrees to pay the 
Authority $ 16,500 per day as liquidated damages to cover losses, expenses and damages of the 
Authority for every Calendar Day which the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of 
the Project. 

 The total construction cost submitted $ 295,932,420.25. 



40% Owner Savings: $14,208,622.30 Reduced from original Project 

VECP calculations for Contract Price of $281,723,797.95  
VECP Gross Savings $38,010,382.63 
Less est. Total Design Cost $1,943,648.45 (Schematics + Final Design) 
Less Est. Owner’s Fees $545,178.43 (GEC, Environmental, T&R Costs) 
VECP Net Savings $35,521,555.75 

 

 

60% Contractor Saving: $21,312,933.45 Paid as Progress Payments 

 

HCRMA 365 TOLL PROJECT CSJ#0921-02-368: CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

Four (4) approved Changes Order(s): [$9,779,136.58l +0 days 

 
CO#1 11/11/2021 entering VECP process +000 days $000,000,000.00 .0% 
CO#2 12/21/2021 VECP Plan Revisions +000 days $(14,208,622.30) (4.80%) 
CO#3 04/26/2022 VECP Contractor Risk +000 days $000,000,000.00 (0%) 
CO#4 01/24/2023 Drill Shafts +000 days $171,516.59 0.06% 
CO#5 06/24/2023 VECP True Realized Savings +000 days $4, 325,130.78  1.44% 
     

 

CHANGE ORDERS: 
 

Change Order No.1 Summary: November 10, 2021, Resolution 2021-54 
 

• The Primary purpose of Change Order No. 1 is for the HCRMA and contractor to enter a defined VECP proves to reduce the overall cost of the project 
based on a 30% design furnished by the contractor. 

• Cost to the Project include: 30% of 5% of the project savings to the project or direct costs to the contractor, whichever is less. These costs are intended 
to pay the contractor for design work achieve a 30% design. 

• The HCRMA assumes ownership of all design work developed by the contractor, and cost savings are shared by the HCRMA and contractor by 40% and 
60% respectively. 

 

Change Order No. 2 Summary: December 20, 2021, Resolution 2021-78 
 

• Change order No. 2 amended the contract price from $295,932,420.25 to $281,723,797.95. 
• By execution of Change Order No. 1, the contractor completed a 30% design to an effort to estimate cost savings for the project. Payment for the 

contractor’s initial design work is $613,285.06 in accordance with calculations presented in Change Order No. 1. This is the only cost due to the 
contractor based on the execution of Change Order No. 2 and is non-participating. 

• Notice to proceed was issued 2/15/2022, the HCRMA reimburse the contractor for the remaining design costs to not exceed 5% of the total cost 
savings. Payments made will be based upon design milestones at 60%, 90% and 100% completion and acceptance. 

 



Change Order No. 3 Summary: April 26, 2022, Resolution 2022-36 

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings. 

• To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission additions, 
or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the “Contractor Risk”). 

• Contractor VECP Savings Payments. 
 

Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows: 
 

 
Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment 

20% Completion $4,262,586.69 

40% Completion $4,262,586.69 

60% Completion $4,262,586.69 

80% Completion $4,262,586.69 

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69 

 $21,312,933.45 
 

The parties agrees that if the Savings are not apparent or justified during a designated progress period, all, or part of any such Savings Payment, on the 

recommendation of the General Engineering Consultant, may be (i)deferred to the next progress period or (iii) reduced to reflect the Contractor’s Risk for 

unrealized Savings/overages. 

Change Order No. 4 Summary: January 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-05 

Change Order No. 4 removes 1,524LF of Item 416-6005 Drill Shaft (42”) introduces 48” drill shafts to incorporate detailed, finalized quantities and unit 

costs; and establishes State/Federal participation on odified unit costs, assuring compliance with the standard specifications included within the contract. 

Change Order No. 4 introducing 1,585LF of Item 416-6006 Drill Shaft (48 IN) at a unit cost of $308.39/LF for a net cost of $171,516.59 to be fully paid by 

HCRMA [Owner]. 
 



Change Order No. 5 Summary: June 24, 2023, Resolution 2023-30 

In Lieu of $38,010,382.63 savings, they only can truly account for $30,565,888. They are claiming that of the $7,444,494.63 shortfall, only $3,186,525.45 is 

from their 60%; additional $4,257,969.18 are contributable to busts in original plans, design errors and quantity mistakes and are to be attributed to 

HCRMA contingency[$ 5,000,000>>$570,514.23]. 

• As provided for Contract Amendment #1 and Change Order No. 2, the Contractor’s share of the net savings includes the “Contractor Risk” that the 
actual costs of implementing the approved VECP concepts in Change Order No. 2 may not result in the saving approved by the parties. To the extent 
total actual costs exceed the total amount approved, all overages due to errors, oversights, omissions, additions, or corrections to final units, final 
quantities, or final unit prices or costs increases shall be deducted from Contractor 60% portion of the net savings. The unrealized savings presented 
are $2,367,208.20 

o To the extent actual costs exceed the amounts presented in Exhibit A, Contractor agrees that such overages due to errors, oversight, omission 
additions, or corrections to final units, quantities or unit pricing shall be deducted from contractor’s 60% portion of the net savings (the 
“Contractor Risk”), revised shall be $19,1771644.74 

o Contractor VECP Savings Payments are amended, as such: 

 
Contractor’s share of the savings shall be calculated and paid out as progress payments under the terms of the contract, as follows: 

 
 
 

Construction Progress Proposed Savings Payment Paid Date 

**20% Completion $4,262,586.69 12/22/22 

40% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,728,764.51 
 

60% Completion $4,262,586.69 $3,728,764.51  

80% Completion $4,262,586.69$3,728,764.51  

Final Acceptance $4,262,586.69$3,728,764.52  

 $21,312,933.45 $19,177,644.74  

 

 
**[overage $637,305.09 = 637,305.09/4=$159,326.27 resulting in Progress Payment of $3,465,955.33: $18, 126,408.00 - $4,262,586.69 = $13,863,821.31 / 4 = $3,465,955.33] 

 



PROJECT PRODUCTION 

 CAPTURING VECP PACKETS 
2/8/23 VECP Team met, exchanged concepts, formats 

3/8/23 VECP meeting formal report submitted 

4/20/23 VECP concepts completed and negotiations underway 

7/07/23 New revised baseline schedule 

7/10/23 CO#5 terms and conditions 
 

 FORMAL SUBMITTALS, REVIEW OF DOCUMENTS 
• RFIs 98 

• SUBMITTALS 101 

 

 TESTING [Soils/Concrete] 
• Levees / embankment / 
• Drill Shafts / Bents 

 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICES [SW3Ps] 

 EMBANKMENT Shary / SH336 / SP115 / Highline/ McColl 

 UNDERGROUND WORK Storm Sewer / Irrigation structures [Sta.957+00 - 1000+00 mid section] 

❑ Bridge Substructure Shary / Floodway / McColl / Canal Bridge / Highline 

• BEAMS SET: McColl / Canal Bridge 

❑ RETAINING WALLS Highline / Anaya 



MAJORMILESTONES:
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015
100% ROW ACQUIRED
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3 –

LET: 08/2015
COMPLETED
PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2 –

OPEN: 01/2026

[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED]
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 1016 / CONWAY
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY







Retaining Wall Erection at Highline STA 1270+00



Highline Road STA 1273+00 FM494 STA 734+00

Canal Bridge STA 1227+00 McColl STA 986+00



Beam Setting at Canal Bridge STA 1227+00



Setting Beams and Pre-cast Panels at McColl STA 986+00



Looking South from South Bentsen Road to FM494



Looking east at west end of Project [Anzalduas BPOE]





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  2A                       

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        8/14/2023                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      8/22/2023     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL  OF MINUTES FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S REGULAR 

MEETING HELD ON JULY 25, 2023 AND THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON 
AUGUST 1, 2023.                                                                                                                        __ 
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting held July 25, 2023 and the Special Meeting held August 1, 2023.____              _ 
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular 

meeting held on July 25, 2023 and the Special Board meeting held on August 1, 2023.____  
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – July 25, 2023   
 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

  HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened for a Workshop and a Regular Board 

Meeting on Tuesday, July 25, 2023, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. 

Cage, Blvd, Pharr, TX 78577, with the following participating: 

 

          Board Members:   Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Director 
Juan Carlos Del Angel, Director 
Frank Pardo, Director (Teleconference) 
Sergio Saenz, Director  
      

                             Absent:           David Deanda, Chairman  
Forrest Runnels, Vice‐Chairman  
Gabriel Kamel, Director  

 
         Staff and Consultants:           Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Ivonne Rodriguez, Administrative Assistant   
Blakely Fernandez, Bracewell Law, Legal Counsel (Teleconference) 
Luis Cardenas, Escobedo & Cardenas, L.L.P.  
Colby Eckols, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor 
 
 

The Executive Director established a quorum and note the Chair and Vice Chair were not present.  The Board 
Members in attendance unanimously elected Director Ezequiel Reyna Jr. as the presiding officer for the 
meeting.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman‐ProTem Ezequiel Reyna Jr. led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Ivonne Rodriguez led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP at 5:31 p.m. 
 
1. Status update on IBTC and SH68.  
       Mr. Margil Maldonado, TxDOT, presented updates on IBTC and SH68.  
 
2. Discussion on Change order 5 for Pulice Construction 365 Toll Construction Project. 

Mr. Pilar Rodriguez and Samuel Maldonado, HDR Engineering, Inc., reviewed the proposed Change Order 
5 for the Pulice Construction 365 Tollway Construction Project. 
  

             ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – July 25, 2023   
 

CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
Chairman‐ProTem Ezequiel Reyna Jr. called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
        No comments. 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 

– HCRMA Staff 
 Mr.  Pilar  Rodriguez  reported  on  Program  Manager  Activity  for  365  Tollway  Project  and  IBTC                    
Environmental Clearance Document.  No action taken.  
 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 
                     Mr. Pilar Rodriguez reported on the construction activity for 365 Tollway Project.  No action taken. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

Motion by Carlos Del Angel with a second by Sergio Saenz, to approve the Consent Agenda.   Motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held June 27, 2023. 

Approved the Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held June 27, 2023. 

 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from June 8, 2023 to July 7, 2023. 

Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from June 8, 2023 to July 7, 2023. 

 

C. Approval of Financial Reports for April 2023. 
Approved the Financial Reports for April 2023. 
 

D. Resolution 2023 – 32 – Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 13 with C&M Associates 
to provide updated traffic projections through the year 2060 for the IBTC MEGA grant application.  
Approved Resolution 2023 – 32 – Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 13 with C&M 
Associates in the amount of $69,205.00 to provide updated traffic projections through the year 2060 for 
the IBTC MEGA grant application.  
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 

A. Resolution 2023‐30 – Consideration and Approval of Change Order No. 5 to that certain construction contract 
with Pulice Construction for the 365 Tollway Project.  
Motion by Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Sergio Saenz, to approve Resolution 2023‐30 – Consideration 
and Approval of Change Order No. 5  in the amount of $4,325,130.78 establishing a new revised contract 
price of $286,220,445.32 to that certain construction contract with Pulice Construction for the 365 Tollway 
Project.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 

B. Resolution 2023‐31 – Approval of One Year Extension  to  the Professional  Service Agreement with Hilltop 
Securities  (First Southwest)  to provide Financial Advisory Services  to  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority. 



HCRMA Minutes – July 25, 2023   
 

Motion by Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Sergio Saenz, to approve Resolution 2023‐31 – Approval of One 
Year Extension to  the Professional Service Agreement with Hilltop Securities  (First Southwest)  to provide 
Financial Advisory Services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. None. 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Change Order Number 5 to that certain contract 

with Pulice Construction Inc. for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken. 
 

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Financial Assistance Agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the 365 Tollway Project (551.071 T.G.C.) 
No Action taken. 
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken. 
 

D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken. 
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken. 
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No Action taken. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – July 25, 2023   
 

 ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, motion by Carlos Del Angel with a second by 
Frank Pardo, to adjourn the meeting at 6:13 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

          ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
     Attest:   
 
 
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
 

  
 
 
 

 



HCRMA Minutes – August 1, 2023 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF IDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened  for a Special Meeting on Tuesday, 

August 1, 2023, at 10:00 am by video/teleconference, with the following participating: 

              Board Members:   David Deanda, Chairman  
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Director 
Juan Carlos Del Angel, Director 
Frank Pardo, Director  
      

                             Absent:           Forrest Runnels, Vice‐Chairman  
Gabriel Kamel, Director  
Sergio Saenz, Director  

 
         Staff and Consultants:           Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer Maria 
Alaniz, Executive Assistant   
Blakely Fernandez, Bracewell Law, Legal Counsel 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman David Deanda led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Alaniz led the invocation.  
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR SPECIAL MEETING 
Chairman Deanda called the Special Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     No Comments. 
 
Mo on by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Carlos Del Angel, to enter into Execu ve Session to consult with 
the board A orney on legal issues pertaining to Item 2A under Sec on 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code and Sec on 551.072 (Delibera on of Real Property) at 10:01 a.m.  Mo on carried unanimously. 
 
Mo on by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Carlos Del Angel, to reconvene the regular board mee ng at 
10:27 a.m. Mo on carried unanimously.   
 

1. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 
 

 



HCRMA Minutes – August 1, 2023 
 

A. Resolu on 2023‐33 ‐ Considera on of invita on to purchase (i) state‐owned property (+/‐ 2.1221 acres; D21‐
109‐144, Old Area Office Tract 1 US/Cage Blvd, Pharr, Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for $195,000.00, and (ii) 
state‐owned property (+/‐ 3.9945 acres; D21‐109‐144; Old Area Office Tract 2, US 281/Cage Blvd, Pharr, 
Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for $870,000.00. 
Mo on by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolu on 2023‐33 ‐ Considera on of 

invita on to purchase (i) state‐owned property (+/‐ 2.1221 acres; D21‐109‐144, Old Area Office Tract 1 

US/Cage Blvd, Pharr, Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for $195,000.00, and (ii) state‐owned property (+/‐ 3.9945 

acres; D21‐109‐144; Old Area Office Tract 2, US 281/Cage Blvd, Pharr, Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for 

$870,000.00. Mo on carried unanimously.  

 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY) AND SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) 

Mo on by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Carlos Del Angel, to enter into Execu ve Session to consult with 
the board A orney on legal issues pertaining to Item 2A under Sec on 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code and Sec on 551.072 (Delibera on of Real Property) at 10:01 a.m.  Mo on carried unanimously. 
 
Mo on by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Carlos Del Angel, to reconvene the regular board mee ng at 
10:27 a.m. Mo on carried unanimously.   
 

A. Consulta on with A orney on legal issues pertaining to the purchase (i) state‐owned property (+/‐ 2.1221 
acres; D21‐109‐144, Old Area Office Tract 1 US/Cage Blvd, Pharr, Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for $195,000.00, 
and (ii) state‐owned property (+/‐ 3.9945 acres; D21‐109‐144; Old Area Office Tract 2, US 281/Cage Blvd, 
Pharr, Hidalgo County, TX 78577) for $870,000.00). 
No Ac on taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT OF SPECIAL MEETING 
   

             There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, mo on by Frank Pardo, with a second by Ezequiel 
Reyna, to adjourn the mee ng at 10:29 a.m. 

 
 

 
 
 

          ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
     A est:   
 
 
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
 



Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           08/16/23                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        08/22/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM JULY 

8, 2023 TO AUGUST 7, 2023     _  ____________ 
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

July 8, 2023 to August 7, 2023          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
     

 General Operating Account                $ 173,217.91  
Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B              $1,608,093.74 

Disbursement Account                 $   71,055.00 
VRF Series 2020A                            $ 0.00 

Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period             $ 1,852,366.65 

       
      Fund Balance after Expenses      $ 160,002,553  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

July 8, 2023 to August 7, 2023, as presented.         
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9 Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _     Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 



  

Memorandum
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director

Date: August 16, 2023

Re: Expense Report for the Period from July 8, 2023 to August 7, 2023

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on July 8, 2022 to August 7, 2023.

Expenses for the General Account total $173,217.91, Toll Revenue Series 2022A&B total is 
$1,608,093.74, and the Disbursement Account total is $ 71,055.00. The aggregate expense for the
reporting period is $1,852,366.65.

Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $1,852,366.65.

This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $160,002,553.

If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.



Plains Capital 41

Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

Valero Fleet 8/15/2023 1,584.74$                                                                           

Bracewell, LLP 8/9/2023 3,623.25$                                                                           

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP 8/7/2023 120.00$                                                                               

City of Pharr 8/11/2023 111,778.93$                                                                       

City of Pharr 8/11/2023 205.00$                                                                               

City of Pharr 8/11/2023 6,765.00$                                                                           

City of Pharr 8/11/2023 850.00$                                                                               

City of Pharr 8/11/2023 5,497.71$                                                                           

Office Depot 7/19/2023 24.32$                                                                                 

A-Fast Delivery, LLC 8/2/2023 177.50$                                                                               

Pathfinder Public Affairs 7/31/2023 10,000.00$                                                                         

Pharr Economic Development Corporation 8/4/2023 4,480.00$                                                                           

Ramon Navarro 8/1/2023 159.23$                                                                               

Celia Gaona 7/21/2023 447.75$                                                                               

Juan C. Del Angel 8/2/2023 577.83$                                                                               

Hilltop Securites Asset Management 7/21/2023 7,883.38$                                                                           

Southern Computer Warehouse 8/7/2023 1,812.14$                                                                           

Xerox Financial Services 8/12/2023 591.60$                                                                               

Xerox Financial Services 8/12/2023 219.46$                                                                               

San Miguel Lawn Services 8/3/2023 465.00$                                                                               

Pena Designs 8/1/2023 200.00$                                                                               

LiftOff, LLC 7/26/2023 10,788.00$                                                                         

Credit Card Services 8/3/2023 495.00$                                                                               

Credit Card Services 8/3/2023 2,530.12$                                                                           

Credit Card Services 8/3/2023 1,941.95$                                                                           

Credit Card Services 8/3/2023 -$                                                                                     

173,217.91$                                                                       

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 A

Pulice Construction, Inc. 8/3/2023 796,999.63$                                                                       

SICE Inc. 8/1/2023 661,243.54$                                                                       

Bracewell, LLP 8/9/2023 7,160.00$                                                                           

Texas Department of Transportation 8/15/2023 4,679.32$                                                                           

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP 8/7/2023 575.00$                                                                               

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. 8/7/2023 800.00$                                                                               

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 8/14/2023 26,741.25$                                                                         

Raba Kistner, Inc. 7/31/2023 28,276.14$                                                                         

L&G Consulting Engineers, Inc. 8/2/2023 58,610.50$                                                                         

Sendero Acquisitions, LP 8/1/2023 3,375.00$                                                                           

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 8/15/2023 1,059.81$                                                                           

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 8/15/2023 6,001.55$                                                                           

Sames, Inc. 7/31/2023 12,572.00$                                                                         

1,608,093.74$                                                                   

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 B

-$                                                                                     

July. 8 - August. 7

August 2023 

Page 1



Make Check Payable to Inv Date Amount

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects CP

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. 8/7/2023 400.00$                                                                               

C&M Associates, Inc. 7/31/2023 69,205.00$                                                                         

San Miguel Lawn Services 8/2/2023 600.00$                                                                               

San Miguel Lawn Services 8/2/2023 850.00$                                                                               

71,055.00$                                                                         
Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A VRF 2020

-$                                                                                     

Sub Total - General -41 (Operating) 173,217.91$                                                               
Sub Total - Construction/Related Costs-44 (New Bonds A 1,608,093.74$                                                           
Sub Total - Construction/Related Costs-44 (New Bonds B -$                                                                            
Sub Total - Capital Projects-45 (Disbursement) 71,055.00$                                                                 
Sub Total - VRF Series 2020A-46 (VRF Series 2020A) -$                                                                            

Total 1,852,366.65$                                                           

Approved: 
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved: 8/22/2023
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Page 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2C 

































































Item 2D 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 Item 3A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

   BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X           
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA ITEM                  3A    
DATE SUBMITTED       08/14/2023 
MEETING DATE     08/22/2023 

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2023-34 – CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT
AMENDMENT 15 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH C&M
ASSOCIATES, INC. TO INCREASE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR WORK
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 13.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 

For the CA 15 for Work Authorization No. 3.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2023-34 – Consideration and
Approval of Contract Amendment 15 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M
Associates, Inc. to increase maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 13,
as presented.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

___________

_________

     

✔

                    

C&M Associates, Inc.           

                                    

                                   

4

$ 18,173

15

2017-58

$ 69,205.00

2017-89

$ 18,173.08

$ 10,096.16

2017-97 $ 18,375.00

2018-04

2018-24 Contract Amendment 4

Original Contract

Contract Amendment 1

Contract Amendment 2

Contract Amendment 3 $ 18,375.00

$ 35,019.23

$ 682,946.73

Contract Amendment 152023-34

$ 782,985.20

Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment 15 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 13.

$ 69,205.00

$ 69,205.00

$ 852,190.20

P. Rodriguez, ED



2018-65 Contract Amendment 5 $ 49,223.08

2018-70 $ 18,375.00

2019-09 $ 17,250.00

2019-23

2019-36

$ 15,896.71

$ 390,634.80

2021-33 $ 35,598.24

2021-72

2021-80

$ 96,952.04

2022-34

$ 18,796.82

$ 40,220.04

2022-64

Contract Amendment 6

Contract Amendment 7

Contract Amendment 8

Contract Amendment 9

Contract Amendment 10

Contract Amendment 11

Contract Amendment 12

Contract Amendment 13

Contract Amendment 14 $ 0.00

$ 682,946.73

2023-33



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 

AUTHORITY BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2023-34 

APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 15 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. TO INCREASE MAXIMUMPAYALE 
AMOUNT FOR WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 13 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 2 2 nd day of August 2023 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-59 – Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to provide updated ESALS 
for the Environmental Clearance Document for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. in the 
amount of $18,173.08; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-88 – Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $10,096.16; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-96 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 
to Work Authorization Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning for the 365 
Tollway Project in the amount of $18,375.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-03 – Approval of Supplemental 
Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 2 the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates to provide a Traffic & Revenue analysis of Scenario “G” for the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $18,375.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-23 – Approval of Work 
Authorization Number 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to 
provide International Bridge Trade Corridor Traffic Projections utilizing Texas Department of 
Transportation Planning and Programming (TxDOT TPP) Procedures in the amount of $35,019.23; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-64 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 4 with C&M Associates, Inc. to provide the 365 Tollway Project – Traffic and Revenue 
Update (2018) including an update to the Bringdown Letter in the amount of $49,223.08; and    



WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-69 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 5 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for traffic & revenue 
analysis of scenario “I” for the 365 Tollway Project, in the amount of $18,375.00; and     

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-70 Approval of Contract 
Amendment Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates to increase the 
maximum payable amount by $18,375.00 for Work Authorization Number 5 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $167,363.55; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-08 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for traffic and revenue 
analysis of scenarios “J” & “K” for the 365 Tollway rescope and rebid, in the amount of $17,250.00; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-09 Approval of Contract 
Amendment Number 7 with C&M Associates to increase the maximum payable amount by 
$17,250.00 for Work Authorization Number 6 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$184,886.55; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-22 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 7 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for IBTC Traffic Projection 
Update using the latest update of the Lower Rio Grande (LRGV) Travel Demand Model (TDM) for 
2019 in the amount of $15,896.71; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-23 Contract Amendment 8 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable 
amount for Work Authorization Number 7 in the amount of $15,896.71 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $200,783.26; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-35 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 8 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for the Investment Grade 
Traffic and Revenue Study for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $390,634.80; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-36 Contract Amendment 9 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable 
amount for Work Authorization Number 8 in the amount of $390,634.80 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $591,418.06; and  

WHEREAS, on  August 24, 2021, the  Authority  approved   Resolution 2021-32 Approval 
of Work Authorization Number 9 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for 
a Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down letter for the 365 Tollway Project financing in the amount of 
$35,598.24; and  



WHEREAS, on August 24, 2021, the Authority approved Resolution 2021-33   Contract 
Amendment 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 9 in the amount of $35,598.24 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $627,016.30; and  

WHEREAS, on November 23, 2021 the Authority approved Resolution 2021-71 Approval 
of Work Authorization Number 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. 
for a Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down letter update for the 365 Tollway project financing and Value 
Engineering Change Proposal (VECP) modeling in the amount of $96,952.04; and  

WHEREAS, on November 23, 2021 the Authority approved Resolution 2021-72 Contract 
Amendment 11 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 10 in the amount of $96,952.04 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $723,968.34; and  

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2021 the Authority approved Resolution 2021-79 – 
Approval of Work Authorization Number 11 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. for an updated Traffic and Revenue Bringdown Letter for the 365 Tollway Project 
that incorporates Toll Collection Fees associated with Video Tolling in the amount of $18,796.82; 
and  

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2021 the Authority approved Resolution 2021-80 – Contract 
Amendment 12 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 11 in the amount of $18,796.82 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $742,765.16; and 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2022 the Authority approved Resolution 2022-33 – Consideration 
and Approval of Work Authorization Number 12 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. for traffic modeling support of the International Bridge Trade Corridor MEGA Grant 
Application in the amount of $31,571.04; and  

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2022 the Authority approved Resolution 2022-34 – Consideration 
and Approval of Contract Amendment 13 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 12 in the 
amount of $40,220.04 for a revised maximum payable amount of $782,985.20; and  

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2022 the Authority approved Resolution 2022-64 - 
Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment 14 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
C&M Associates, Inc. for No Cost Time Extension; and  

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2023 the authority approved Resolution 2023-32 - Consideration 
and Approval of Work Authorization 13 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. to provide updated traffic projections through 2060 for the IBTC Mega Grant 
Application in the amount of $69,205.00; and   

WHEREAS, the Authority finds is necessary to approve Resolution 2023-34 - Consideration 
and Approval of Contract Amendment 15 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. to increase maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 13 in the 
amount of 69,205.00 for a revised maximum payable amount of $852,190.20.  



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Contract Amendment Number 15 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc., to increase maximum payable 
amount for Work Authorization Number 13, hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

Section 3.     The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Contract Amendment      
Number 15 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates as approved. 

***** 

PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF DIRECTORS  OF THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 22nd day of 
August 2023, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda,  Jr., Chairman 

________________________________________ 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 



Exhibit A 

Contract 
Amendment 15  

to  
Professional   Service Agreement 

with 
C&M 

Associates, Inc. 
for 

Traffic 
Engineering 

Services for the 
IBTC Project 



HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 
HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL  

Supplemental Agreement No. 15 to Professional Services Agreement 
Attachment D-2 – Page 1 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. _ 15_ 

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO 15 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of “Attachment A General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements of that certain Professional 
Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and C&M Associates, Inc. (the Engineer). 

The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 

Article II Agreement Period 
This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the close 
of business on December 31, 202 . 

Article III Compensation  
Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the maximum amount payable under this contract from 
$782,985.20 to $852,190.20 for a total increase of $69,205.00 due to additional scope and effort outlined in 
Work Authorization No. 13 for updated traffic projections through 2060 for the International Bridge Trade 
Corridor MEGA Grant Application.  

This Supplemental Agreement No. 15 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 
of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 
force and effect. 

     THE ENGINEER               THE AUTHORITY 

_______________________________ ______________________________ 
      (Signature) (Signature) 

_ Carlos M. Contreras _________Pilar Rodriguez________ 
 (Printed Name)        (Printed Name) 

_________President  ________Executive Director_______ 
       (Title)    (Title) 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
       (Date)    (Date) 


	Notice of Agenda
	Agenda Item WS1 - Review of Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending June 30, 2023
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project 
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting Held July 25, 2023 and Special Board Meeting Held on August 1, 2023
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the Period from July 8, 2023 to August 7, 2023
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for May 2023
	Agenda Item 2D - Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending June 30, 2023
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2023 – 33 – Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment 15 to Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates to Increase Maximum Payable Amount for Work Authorization Number 13 



